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Minutes of:  Tuesday, December 9th, 2025





SALUTE TO THE FLAG (7:00 p.m.)

Chairman Gorres called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL:    	Darlene Eisenhardt,  Nathaniel Baum,  Chairman Richard Gorres,
                       		Ernie VanDeMark,  Joseph LaFiandra		

EXCUSED:		Richard Dmytry,  Eric Merritt

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  p22
November 18th, 2025,  

PUBLIC HEARING: (Continued)  p3
1. Big Green Barn  LLC                                                     	SBL#  94.04-5-17
540 S. Ohioville Road                                            	Proposed:  Multi-Family 

· Applicant proposed use of an existing barn structure as an additional dwelling unit.
· Board discussed accessory dwelling unit limitations under Town Code.
· Applicant stated the proposal involves the smaller barn containing a long-vacant apartment.
· The public hearing was closed due to no public comment.
· The Board advised the applicant to consult with counsel and indicated that one dwelling unit    must be vacated prior to further consideration.
· The Board stated it was not prepared to grant contingent final approval at this time.

Motion:  p9
Close Public Hearing:  Gorres / VanDeMark — Aye

NEW BUSINESS:  p12

1. New Paltz Rescue Squad				SBL#  101.1-5-4
1978 Route 32						Proposed:  Site Plan

· Applicant did not attend, rescheduled for January 13th, 2026











OLD BUSINESS:  p12

Peak Summit Enterprises Inc.   				SBL# 107.8-1-6 & 101.4-7-18
Orfeo Road         		                                        Proposed:  Lot Line

· Application proposed a lot line adjustment creating two residential lots.
· NYSDEC wetlands crossing permit and Ulster County Department of Health approval were received.
· Board reviewed stormwater management, StormTech chamber cover requirements, and fire department turnaround access.
· Engineer comments were reviewed and outstanding items noted for final map submission.

Motions:   p13
· Waive Final Public Hearing:  Gorres /  No Second —  Aye
· Grant Contingent Final Approval, subject to submission of proof of chamber cover, fire department turnaround approval, and all final maps:   Gorres / Eisenhardt — Aye


CORRESPONDENCE:

VOUCHERS:  p22
	
1. $177.50 from MHE Engineering for work done on United Pump & Tank  	 RG/EV
2. $347.40 from MHE Engineering for work done on Lands of Chaissan  		 RG/EV
3. $347.40 from MHE Engineering for work done on Peak Summit Enterprises   	 RG/EV
4. $289.70 from MHE Engineering for work done on Forest Modern   		 RG/DE
5. $478.40 from MHE Engineering for work done on The Ridge Yard  		 RG/DE
6. $208.40 from MHE Engineering for work done on Drive Home R.V. 		 RG/EV
7. $618.20 from MHE Engineering for work done on Plattekill Public Library   	 RG/EV

RE-ORG:  p26

· Engineer, Patrick Hines of MHE Engineering					 RG/DE
· Attorney, Dominic Cordisco of Drake Loeb Attorney at Law			 RG/EV
· Newspaper, Southern Ulster Times						 RG/DE
· Clerk, Elizabeth Ackerly							 RG/DE
· Voucher Committee, Nathaniel Baum						 RG/DE
· Chairman, Ernie VanDeMark							 DE/RG
· Vice-Chair, Darlene Eisenhardt							 RG/JL
· Secretary, Joseph LaFiandra							 DE/RG

ADJOURNMENT:  p31

MOTION made by Darlene Eisenhardt to adjourn the meeting at 8:17 P.M. 
Seconded by Chairman Richard Gorres, all Ayes on the vote.



DISCUSSION:

R. Gorres:
Darlene Eisenhardt?

D. Eisenhardt:
Here.

R. Gorres:
Nathaniel Baum?

N. Baum:
Here.

R. Gorres:
Richard Gores, here. Ernie Vandermark?

E. VanDeMark:
Here.

R. Gorres:
Joe Lafiandra?

J. LaFiandra:
Present.

R. Gorres:
And who are we missing?

D. Eisenhardt:
Eric [Merritt]. Eric and Rich Dmytry.

R. Gorres:
And  Rich Dmytry. Yeah, those are excused absences. Also on the agenda for tonight, and I meant to call you and tell you, is we have to do this is the reorganization meeting too when we're done.
Okay. So, we're going to have a meeting. And whenever we do the reorg part of it, all that has to go to the town board so they know what we did and see if they're happy with it. Okay. Public hearing. We have a public hearing notice. So pretty. Big Green Barn.

D. Eisenhardt:
Liz, do we have the public hearing notice? Oh, there it is.

R. Gorres:
I'll read that and we'll get started. And you can grab your copy of what you wrote here. There's nobody here anyway, so I don't think this is going to be much of a presentation. Oh, look at this. The new supervisor is going to sit and watch. Why not? You have nothing else to do tonight.

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the planning board, town of County of Ulster on Tuesday, December 9th at 7 p.m. or as soon thereafter as may be heard. Plattekill Town Hall, 1915, 44, 55. Modena, New York. At this time, the planning board will be conducting a public hearing on the application of lands to Big Green Barn for a Multi-Family residence.
The property is located on 540 South Ohioville Road, designated as tax map section 94 for block five, lot 17. All interested parties will be given an opportunity to hear in respect to this application. For further information, please direct your inquiries to the planning board clerk at 845-883-7331 extension 18.

Okay. Read off what you're doing. You can come up here. Might as well. There's nobody here for the public hearing.

E. VanDeMark:
Want to go through the MOTIONs?

R. Gorres:
Yeah. We might as well close the public hearing.

E. VanDeMark:
Let's do the presentation. Yeah. And then we'll close it. And then we'll be good. And then we will have given a little bit of time.

R. Gorres:
There. Okay. Did you get comments? They just came today to comment from our engineer. Where did my pile of stuff go?

E. VanDeMark:
Let me see that.

R. Gorres:
Where did my pile of stuff go?

E. VanDeMark:
Okay. You do this all the time, right?

R. Gorres:
Yeah. Yeah. Because it ends up...Okay. Now, I'm going to read you one of his longest comments here. Now, you currently have a house and two mobile homes on the property, right?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Mm-hmm. 

R. Gorres:
That's three units. 

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Mm-hmm.

R. Gorres:
Okay. His comment, I'll read this to you. 

“Status of all or any of the trailers should be addressed. Applicant previously identified trailers would be removed from the site. The presence of two manufactured homes on the site meets the definition of mobile home park. Any parcel or ground on which two or more mobile homes occupy for dwelling or sleeping purposes are located regardless or whether or not a charge is made for such accommodation. Status of any mobile homes on the site should be addressed. The presence of two mobile homes requires a minimum of 10 acres. The mobile homes, in combination with the existing single-family residence and proposed AUD unit in the garage area, would require review and approval under the Multifamily Home Use Law. And or depicted on that site can be subdivided by lots.”

Because you're only allowed up to... How many acres is your lot? 13.8?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
13.8. Yes.


R. Gorres:
You're allowed to have up to three. Now, you're going to have four.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Mm-hmm.

R. Gorres:
So, unless one of those is going, what he's trying to say is you'd have to go through a different process to do that. So, what we need to know at this point is, are they staying once you finish the barn and... Or are they being moved?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
We ask... Those are land leases, so we don't own the mobile homes. 

R. Gorres:
Yeah, but they're on your property.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Yeah, I know. So, when we purchase the property, we ask them, it's like, hey, we want to be doing farming on this property. Can you please find somewhere to relocate your mobile homes?

R. Gorres:
That's going to be difficult. That's going to be difficult for them, which is not your problem.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
So, what our lawyer told us is that if we do go ahead with an eviction, it would take about six months. One of the mobile homes, the one in the front, it's completely empty because the family that lives there outgrew the mobile home. It's two adults, the parents and four kids. So, they no longer live there, but they still keep paying the land lease for some reason. I would think those mobile homes are from 1971 and 1972.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, they're not moving those things.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
In my opinion, in our opinion, we think they're kind of biohazards.

E. VanDeMark:
That could be. Is the electric service still active to the one that's empty? 

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Yes, both of them. And the other gentleman, we asked them, it's like, hey, please figure out what you want to do with your mobile home. By the way, this is my husband.

R. Gorres:
You might have to have your lawyer write them a letter. Especially the one that's empty.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
We did. We did, actually. We did for both of them. 

R. Gorres:
We said that we would give them ample time to find it. You want to get this thing done and over with because this process, as it stands, won't take long.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
So, we've asked them both.

R. Gorres:
Okay. So, that's the letter that we sent to both of them. And no response from anybody?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
They are like, we can't move it. But anything's movable at this point.

R. Gorres:
Oh, it is movable with a big backhoe and a dumpster. Yeah. But the units themselves do not belong to you.
And how long are their leases? Are they month to month?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Month to month now. The lease has expired.  They're on a month to month, but from the previous owner, it just kept rolling over month to month.

R. Gorres:
And he wanted the money. So, I don't see what the problem is. Getting them evicted is going to take a while.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Yeah, the lawyer said six months. But we want to be nice and give them time to figure it out. So, we sent these letters in May of last year? Oh, this year. May of this year.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, and you've already given them six months.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
We're trying to be accommodating as much as possible.

R. Gorres:
And this is inhabited?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
That's the one that's inhabited.

R. Gorres:
So, if you give it a one, then it's not a mobile home park. Then you only have two uses on the land. And when you convert to barn, that's your third use. So, that's okay under our law. So, the one that's empty needs to go.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Well, we want them both gone.

R. Gorres:
We'll start with that one. If you get rid of one of them in the beginning, you can work on the second one while you're doing the renovations on the building. Otherwise... Because I don't know how the building inspector is going to look at that. Because as long as there's three uses on there, we can't approve a fourth unless one of them is gone.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
So, this permitting process was for the fourth, is what you told the gentleman in that office? Yeah. Yeah, that's what he told me. He's like, apply for the permit and get an exception for the fourth while you wait on them.

R. Gorres:
As long as we have some kind of documentation that proves that you're working on an eviction, like these. Yeah, we'll put them in a file. I'll give those to Liz, because if they go in my file... You can do that any time you want.
I figure everybody needs a good laugh.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Yeah. He's like, yes, we can go ahead with it tomorrow.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, I would do that. And... Liz, what I would ask you to do, I didn't think I'd bring you to tears, is call Pat or drop him a letter asking the landowners here are in the process of eviction for both of them.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
The process has started?

N. Baum:
Have you started an eviction process?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
No, not yet. Just a heads up, it's coming. But in the meantime, let's do this amicably and we're giving you time to figure out, look to...

R. Gorres:
So this is how it's probably going to work. We can grant you a contingent final approval on the project based on them being evicted. Yes, no?

N. Baum:
I don't know if we can do it with other legal precedents happening at the same time. I don't believe so. I think we need to see movement on one or both being gone before we can actually grant anything. If one is removed, the vacant one is removed, then you would be able to move the project forward.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Honestly, it doesn't make sense for us to have one and let the other guys stay.

R. Gorres:
We want them because... Yeah, but for your future purposes, you want them both gone. 

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Correct.

N. Baum:
But to make progress on this, we need at least one gone. 

R. Gorres:
Yeah, if you can get one of them gone, like the empty one, and come back and say, hey, look, we got that one gone. Can we move forward? And then while you're moving forward with this process, you can start on working on that.

N. Baum:
I just don't want a contingent on a legal action against tenants. We don't know the timeframe of that will be. We have an idea of what the timeframe will be, but the court system has to deal with that.

R. Gorres:
Has to do that. That's probably something, and I hate to say it this way, something you probably should have started a while ago. I would have given them three days with this letter, and if they didn't respond, out.
All right. Because for anybody to get rid of their mobile home, if they're already living it, nobody's going to take a, and Nathaniel will tell you, nobody's going to take a 71 mobile home into a park.

N. Baum:
Some may if it's rehabbable, but around here, I'm not sure.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, I tried that a few years ago, and it's not a process they want to get involved in.


D. Eisenhardt:
So they get rid of the white one, and then they can start working on the barn.



N. Baum:
Yeah. That's the way I read it, because until it comes back into conformance, we can't give any direction to go ahead with it.

R. Gorres:
Yeah. Because you don't want to go through the multifamily process. That's just another...

Ms. Loye (BGB):
What is the multifamily process?

R. Gorres:
Well, because it's not going to be multifamily after you evict them. So there's no point in going through that process. It's a longer process.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Okay. But just for our knowledge, what is the...

R. Gorres:
Edification, because you're having four dwelling units on less land than you need. See, like where I have, I have 12 acres. I can put three houses on that land, but when you get to that fourth one, you're over the limit, even though the...

J. LaFiandra:
Rich, does that require a referral to the zoning board?

E. VanDeMark:
No. No, not right now.

R. Gorres:
No, what it requires is for them to get these people off their property. I hate to say it that way, but... 
And then when they're both gone, they can use their property as they see fit.
They can have the house, the single-family home, and then they can have the additional dwelling unit for their mother or mother-in-law in the process, compared to doing a multi-family thing.

J. LaFiandra:
I have some technical questions, actually, about that accessory dwelling unit. I notice in the town code there are some limitations. There's a 25% and at least 500 square foot, like, and a one-bedroom limitation on it.

R. Gorres:
It depends, because what they really started years ago was when they wanted to put two separate houses. That's an accessory used through the house, but people were just taking it and turning half their house into another house, making a duplex, so it's fairly strict on how you got to go about it. This is actually another house.

J. LaFiandra:
Right.

R. Gorres:
But this building is fairly large.

J. LaFiandra:
Yeah, it's larger.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, that should be nice. It looks nice. It's a second home. But that's fairly large. Are you going to use the whole barn for an apartment?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
This is actually the small barn on our property. Yeah, the other one is massive.

J. LaFiandra:
It's not that building.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
No.

J. LaFiandra:
Okay.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
This building used to be the cowboy barn of back in the day.

R. Gorres:
Did you buy this from Matt Smith?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
Yeah, Matt and Linda.

R. Gorres:
Okay.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
So, back in the day, I guess, when it was full of orchards, the farmhands used to live here. So there's an apartment in there. It's just... God only knows how old it is. It hasn’t been used in years. I have decades probably by the looks of it.

R. Gorres:
I don't think Matt has had anyone living there. It hasn't been used in years. Okay. Well, at this point, we can make a MOTION to close the public hearing since there's no comment and leave it at that point.

E. VanDeMark:
We should verbally poll the audience if there's any...

R. Gorres:
Any comment on this? From the two parties here?

J. LaFiandra:
All right.

R. Gorres:
All right. I make a MOTION we close the public hearing on The Big Green Barn.

E. VanDeMark:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?


All:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
So what you need to do is call your attorney in the morning and start proceedings.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
So once we get the attorney on board and get things going, can we start? Or do we actually have to wait until these people...

E. VanDeMark:
Have to wait until one is gone. I would have you guys lean towards the one that’s empty, that nobody is in.

N. Baum:
I just don't want to have a contingent final or anything at this point until that’s done.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, and if we call our attorney, he's going to tell us the same thing. So we're not going to spend your money on a legal opinion when he's going to tell you yeah, at least one of them has got to be gone. So you don’t need to spend $300, $400 for an opinion that we can give you to do that.

Mr. Loye (BGB):
So if they were to walk away from it and just say...

N. Baum:
If they abandon it, then you have to go through another legal proceeding which your attorney will advise you on. 

R. Gorres:
If they abandon it, call your attorney and ask him for his advice. That's why you have him.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
That's the thing. We thought when we sent this letter they would abandon it. That's exactly what we thought. But they still are...

R. Gorres:
They can abandon it. The problem is the units are still not yours.

E. VanDeMark:
Because there's a title that goes to each one of them. It does not have your name on it. 

N. Baum:
These are bill of sale. A chain of title is going to be hard to produce unless... Were you given bill of sales for them? 

Ms. Loye (BGB):
No, we were told those mobile homes are just planted on the land.

N. Baum:
They did grow over the years. Kidding, you said they were planted.

E. VanDeMark:
When you sent these two letters did you send them certified, registered?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
No, via email.

E. VanDeMark:
Oh, email. Yeah. Your attorney will probably have you send something certified, registered.

R. Gorres:
Certified mail that is trackable. The fact that you sent the letters in the first place, you don't need to resend these letters to them. You need to send them an eviction notice.

N. Baum:
Your attorney will need to follow the appropriate codes for dealing with manufactured homes to make sure you're covering all your bases.

Mr. Loye (BGB):
Okay. Yep.

R. Gorres:
Alright. So, that's where you're at. Yep. Okay. That's where you're at. If anything changes quick enough, call and talk to Elizabeth. If you get an eviction notice, an eviction that takes three months and it's done, just call Elizabeth and we'll put you back on the agenda. But that's where we're at.

N. Baum:
Any other questions?

Ms. Loye (BGB):
No, I just feel bad.

Mr. Loye (BGB):
Yeah.

Ms. Loye (BGB):
I wish I was cutthroat enough to be like, hey, outtie.

D. Eisenhardt:
Well, you want your mom out of the house, right? Yeah.

N. Baum:
You sent them a previous notice indicating what your desires were to use the property for. At this point now, you're beginning the process to get yourself there. Yeah. And you've notified them so it's not like they've had no time. They'll still have more time throughout the process as well.

R. Gorres:
Yeah. I know it's tough. And don't fall for the thing we don't have any place to take them. That's exactly what... That's not your... I hate to sound cold because I went through that process to get my mobile home in a park one day and you gotta do what you gotta do. It's your property. Otherwise, it just drags on and on. And it's a relatively simple thing that should be done in a couple months. But we can't do anything until one of those or both are gone.

J. LaFiandra:
Right. I have another question. Are we going to require any additional drawings for the dwelling unit, architectural drawings, that kind of thing?

R. Gorres:
They have to draw something up for the... I'm surprised the building inspector some kind of... Yeah, what you're doing to the barn because you're changing the use of the barn from a barn to a home. The building inspector, I'm surprised he didn't inquire you some kind of... You might want to call the building inspector in the meantime too because he knows you're converting a barn to a home but he didn't ask for anything because you hit another hiccup. Call the building inspector and say you went to the planning board and they want to know if there's anything else you two need to do in reference to changing the barn into an accessory dwelling unit.
Ms. Loye (BGB):
Yeah. When I spoke to him, the first thing he said was like, oh, that's the fourth. Go get a permit for a fourth and come talk to me. That's kind of loosely what he said to me.

R. Gorres:
Okay. That's what we're going to put in our file. Just call the building inspector and tell him the planning board wants something in writing about what he just told you. You can bring that in any time but when we do this, we have to have documentation here otherwise somebody else will come in and want to do it. Oh, you did this for them and I'm like, we won't do that. All right, that's it. All right, thanks for your time.

Mr. Loye (BGB):
Thank you.

R. Gorres:
Bye-bye. Bye-bye. Well, they're [New Paltz Rescue Squad] not here so we're going to put them [Peak Summit Enterprises] in front. We don't need a motion. They didn't show up so... Okay. Mr. Lytle, good evening. Yeah. Since they're not here, that's that. Take some of that in front of you. Now, that's the big green barn. That's the people that ain't here. Did you... All right, let me just read off the comments from Pat [Hines, MHE Engineer] because we just got these today so you don't have them. The project has received NYSDEC Article 24 wetlands permit which we have. County Health Department approval for the subservice sanitary disposal system has been received. The design has been approved and executed. A detail for the cover crossing should be added to the plans. Does that mean you did it? 

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
It's on the plans. 

R. Gorres:
Okay. The Storm Tech Design Manual requires significant cover over the chamber to function as designed. Does that mean the piece you're putting in for the...

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
Right. They would minimum require that's simple.

R. Gorres:
I know somebody brought this up. While fire department turnouts have been provided in accordance with Section 511.2.3, fire department turnarounds for each of the residential structures must be provided in accordance with Section 511.2.2. These turnarounds should be appropriately dimensioned at each of the driveway terminuses, not just ends.

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
So we have turnarounds all along the way to the house and it's not a problem.

R. Gorres:
Oh, okay.

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
The fire truck gets up there, they don't want to have to back down the driveway to a turnaround. And it's over 500 feet, so we give them a turnaround halfway up it, but they won't actually up by the house. Newburgh’s doing it, other towns are doing it too.

R. Gorres:
Well, it makes sense. 

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
It absolutely makes sense. Just gravel.


R. Gorres:
But these current plans don’t have…

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
These do not have, I just got those comments emailed to me yesterday. So I can actually get them to Pat, before you guys sign plans.

R. Gorres:
So, you have two changes to make then?

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
Yeah, just confirmation.

R. Gorres:
On the turnarounds, and... 

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
And depth of cover with him.

R. Gorres:
Oh, the cover. Yeah, the cover material. Okay.

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
I'll email him forward and he'll give you something in email and you're good to sign. I assume that's everything, okay.

R. Gorres:
Well, we receive no further written comment or otherwise, so public hearing is officially closed, written and otherwise. Okay. What else we got to do here? I don't think anything. Everything else has been done. Okay.
We can waive... Does this get a final public hearing? Yeah. I make a MOTION we waive final public hearing. 

E. VanDeMark:
Second. 

R. Gorres:
All on the vote?

All:
Aye. 

R. Gorres:
Okay. I'm going to make a MOTION to grant final approval for Peak Summit and the MOTION is conditional approval based on proof of cover over the chamber. And turnarounds for the fire department in the location the fire department wants and fees, maps, and mylars. That's the MOTION.

Ken Lytle (Peak Summit rep.):
I have a question where you said fees. There shouldn't be any fees because we're not creating any new lots.

R. Gorres:
I know, but that's just...That's just part of the rigamarole.

R. Gorres:
Everything's a couple thousand dollars, so let's double check.  No, we're good. Okay. Do I have a second?


D. Eisenhardt:
Second.

R. Gorres:
All on the vote?

D. Eisenhardt:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
What that means is when you get... When we hear back from Pat that you got that stuff done and you bring it in, someone will sign the maps for you. Good enough. Okay. Gentlemen, ladies, thank you very much. Have a good one.

D. Eisenhardt:
Yeah, you too.

R. Gorres:
You too.

R. Gorres:
All right. If everybody's done, we're going to... Hang on one second.

E. VanDeMark:
Fees, maps.

J. LaFiandra:
I seem to recall Pat mentioned something about responsibility for the drainage system, the stormwater collection system. Someone made an issue of it at the public hearing and he said they would address that in the notes.

E. VanDeMark:
Yeah, who the owner is of maintenance of the culvert.

J. LaFiandra:
Right.

E. VanDeMark:
Because he thought that it was going to clog, whether it be by beaver action or just regular runoff.

R. Gorres:
Pat didn't address that?

E. VanDeMark:
Not in here. He missed it.

R. Gorres:
Because anything could clog it up. Any stream anywhere can be clogged up by a beaver around here. I'm venturing a guess that if you're going over a driveway and a beaver blocks up the culvert under your road, you're going to want to clean it up, otherwise you're not going to have a driveway very soon.

E. VanDeMark:
I'm pretty sure it should be in this bunch of minutes.

D. Eisenhardt:
He said the septic system is going to need re-evaluation on page 29 of the minutes from October, from November 18th.

R. Gorres:
Okay, but a number two comment from Pat. County Health Department approval for the subsurface sanitary sewer disposal system has been received. So the county's approved.

D. Eisenhardt:
Okay, so that's since November 18th then they must have done it.

R. Gorres:
Elizabeth, can you call? You have a number for New Paltz Rescue?

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
Yeah.

R. Gorres:
Find out what happened. And maybe they want to reschedule for January.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
I would be happy to.

R. Gorres:
Okay. I'm taking it because I know you do your job diligently. They didn't call you and cancel.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
Oh no, and I sent them out a letter last week.

R. Gorres:
Okay, good.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
We spoke on the phone numerous times.

J. LaFiandra:
Why does New Paltz Rescue have a substation in Plattekill?

R. Gorres:
Because that's the name of the company.

J. LaFiandra:
Okay, so they're providing ALS for...

R. Gorres:
They're providing ALS right now for Clintondale.

J. LaFiandra:
I think Highland too.

R. Gorres:
Well, that's a separate entity.

J. LaFiandra:
Yeah.

R. Gorres:
They're contracted with the town of Lloyd. Clintondale Fire District is contracted with them through the county to provide ambulance service for the Clintondale Fire District that's not covered by Highland. And eventually, depending on what Modena does, because they're back and forth about discontinuing your ambulance service at some point, you're going to need ambulance service because the town board is now in the process of creating a...
What do I want to call it, Mike? Ambulance district for the whole town, which they should have done 10 years ago. But we finally got all three fire districts and rescue squads to sit down and not fight.
And now the town board is working on a law for the EMS unit for the whole town. At some point, because the Plattekill Fire Department has two ambulances now, and they're working on getting their license from the state to be able to charge and provide ambulance service. So for now, to make sure we have ambulance service for the whole town, New Paltz Rescue Service is locating an ambulance in town and probably two at some point.
Does that answer your question, Joe?

J. LaFiandra:
Yes. Good. I saw it going to Hannaford one day. I'm driving on 32. I saw the sign for which they need a permit, I understand.

R. Gorres:
Well, they're changing the use of the building.

J. LaFiandra:
I think there's some sign regulations where if it's over eight square feet they need a permit, I think. Well, it depends on how much the road frontage.

R. Gorres:
Your signs or the size of your sign is based on how much road frontage you have. At least I think it is in Plattekill. So, and they don't really need a big sign.

It's not like they're advertising for business. They just need a sign there to tell people where they are because, frankly, you're not going to drive in there and say I need an ambulance.

N. Baum:
Not safely, at least.

R. Gorres:
Maybe if you're driving on the thruway to Kingston.

J. LaFiandra:
I just want to be consistent if there are certain regulations they must follow regardless of...

R. Gorres:
No, there's no regulations for them to follow other than the fact that we have to grant a change of use to the building owner for them to be there. They can be anywhere in town they want as long as the property is big enough and it's a garage.

J. LaFiandra:
So, if there has to be a change in the use because the law says that the user must be the owner.

R. Gorres:
No.

J. LaFiandra:
Will that be a variance?

R. Gorres:
No. No. Whatever use that building is allowed in this district can be done in the building, but if you change it from storage like it was for Lightning Express to now emergency services, the change of use requires you to come to the planning board.

J. LaFiandra:
It's under the essential users section of the law.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, even though it is, it still requires them to be here. Yeah. Because there's probably going to be changes made to the building, maybe.


R. Gorres:
Well, it's got garage doors on it. How much more do you need for an ambulance? There's something else in there now, isn't there?

D. Eisenhardt:
Yeah, they're storing artwork and stuff in there. They came before like a year ago. Lightning Express has nothing to do with that building anymore.

E. VanDeMark:
That's where Workshop Storage LLC comes in. That's the guy from Kingston.

D. Eisenhardt:
Yep.

E. VanDeMark:
That owns the building.

R. Gorres:
Owns the building.

D. Eisenhardt:
Yeah, because he's storing that stuff in the back. He's not doing any work, but he uses it as a storage facility.

R. Gorres:
Right, he doesn't need the whole building.

D. Eisenhardt:
Right.

R. Gorres:
Because there was somebody else in there for a while who never came to the board. It was a guy doing heating and cooling or some kind of crazy thing. Or at least this building inspector was doing his job.

E. VanDeMark:
So they were no show, correct?

R. Gorres:
Yep.

R. Gorres:
That being said, it's time for... Do we have any...

D. Eisenhardt:
We have vouchers. We have the minutes we have to discuss. And can we discuss the cards? The green cards?
R. Gorres:
What about them?

D. Eisenhardt:
I know there's been complaints from Patty and Pat were saying the same thing, that other towns are no longer requiring it to be signed by the... So do we have to make a law or can the planning board approve that?

R. Gorres:
No, that's board policy, we can change that. It's the policy of the board that they've been doing that since I've been here. They've probably been doing this since they started.


D. Eisenhardt:
So if you go back through the minutes and you look, like Nate's last one there was like 13 out of however many, right? And the same thing with the previous one too.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, and it's less expensive on the...

D. Eisenhardt:
Yeah, because Patty was saying it's $10 each to send them out.

N. Baum:
The only problem is that's the only way you can defend that you actually sent it. To require the signature, they can refuse it, that's one thing, but to require that it shows proof that they received it. I know it's an expensive thing and it's not, I don't appreciate that about it, but it does provide security for the applicant.

R. Gorres:
And we don't require you to make sure every single one comes back. We just want to know that you sent it out and it was paid for. If we send out 20 and we get 14 back, nobody's ever said no, we can't go forward as long as we know that enough people got it that it's out there.

N. Baum:
If they're within the distance and they receive or it was sent to them, whether they received it or not, I just, I think it provides extra security, but yeah, it is an expensive venture and it's only getting worse.

R. Gorres:
Yeah. Because post office needs more money.

N. Baum:
They're going broke.

D. Eisenhardt:
No, and I certainly understand. Our post man is like down a day of work now.

N. Baum:
Oh man.

D. Eisenhardt:
Yeah. They cut some of his pay and cut some of his hours now.

R. Gorres:
Okay, so.

D. Eisenhardt:
Going broke.

N. Baum:
Yeah, so this option might not even be available for that long.

R. Gorres:
Anybody else's opinion on that? Because I think it should stay because we don't require, Darlene, we don't require you to have them all.

D. Eisenhardt:
Right.


R. Gorres:
We just want to make sure you send them out. And just because Patty and Pat don't like it, if it's been working this long, because that way if somebody sits out in that audience, well, I never got one. Well, it was sent to you.
Here's the proof right here.

D. Eisenhardt:
So what is our cutoff for that? Let's just say there's 20 and we only get five back. Does that make sense as long as we get something back?

R. Gorres:
They made an attempt to reach them.

N. Baum:
That's the way I feel if the board has other decisions or we can talk to Pat as well and hear what other towns are doing and evaluate that.

R. Gorres:
At this point, I don't think we should change it.

N. Baum:
It's expensive. I can do some research and we can talk to Pat about it, but I feel that provides the most security.

J. LaFiandra:
Is the issue the return receipt?

N. Baum:
A signature to prove, yeah.

J. LaFiandra:
Because you can send things regular certified mail without the return receipt. I don't know what the difference is other than you don't get a confirmation.

N. Baum:
That's the whole thing.

R. Gorres:
We want confirmation.

J. LaFiandra:
That it was received?  When we're looking for confirmation that the applicant sent it out, that could be done by certified mail. Regular certified mail.

N. Baum:
No, I understand that, but if somebody refuses to pick it up because sometimes people get afraid of seeing that in the mail, they have no stand on it if it's not a signature. It gets returned. That's how I feel about it.
It provides a little extra protection, but I understand it's a little bit more expensive, but we can go whichever way the board decides to go.

R. Gorres:
We'll talk to Pat next time he comes in, but at this point we'll leave it alone.

N. Baum:
I think we can amend that at any time, too. I don't know if it has to be at year end.

R. Gorres:
No. That's just board policy. We can talk again about it in the new year.

J. LaFiandra:
Okay.

N. Baum:
Would you prefer to go that direction with it?

J. LaFiandra:
That's my experience. Where I used to work, we sent out notices of violation by regular certified mail. We didn't send a return receipt.

N. Baum:
Were there ever issues if an individual says, I never received it, you can't prove that I received it because I didn't sign for it? I'm trying to avoid that.

J. LaFiandra:
We never had that issue, but it was always sent to the offender. It was basically a notice of violation, and we would send it to the offender just to inform them that there's a violation, there's going to be a fine, but we didn't need a return receipt on that. I guess it was incumbent upon us to prove that we sent the violation out.

R. Gorres:
Another thing for you to do, Liz, check with the building inspector. Check with Bill. When he sends out his violations, how he mails it, that's fairly important. When he sends it out, he wants a response. Find out what Bill does. We'll bring that back. We'll talk about that. We'll talk again in the new year. We'll just get some information on that first.

D. Eisenhardt:
The minutes, I have some changes, but I talked to Liz. I'm going to hand her my sheet with the changes on them. There's a couple of errors, but that's all I had for the minutes.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
I'll make the changes, guys.

E. VanDeMark:
You think this line [referring to the minutes] here. So here's the discussion about the big green barn or whatever. They didn't do the mailing. “You didn't do the mailing, right? No, I didn't. Okay, that's different. If you didn't do the hearing at all, nobody's here for the...” I think this word should be mailing.

R. Gorres:
Right.

E. VanDeMark:
You didn't do the mailing.

R. Gorres:
Mailing.

E. VanDeMark:
That's what I think.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, it's supposed to be mailing, yeah.

N. Baum:
Mailing instead of hearing.

R. Gorres:
Instead of hearing, yeah.

N. Baum:
Because if you didn't do the mailing at all.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, that's why I said, if they didn't do the mailing, nobody's going to be here. You have to reschedule it.

J. LaFiandra:
What did they say on page nine?  I'm saying what? Yeah. No, that's... Yeah, I didn't understand.

D. Eisenhardt:
I think he literally said, like, wall bar.

R. Gorres:
Did he say that?

D. Eisenhardt:
But I don't know, like, where he was referring to.

R. Gorres:
That makes no sense.

D. Eisenhardt:
Yeah, there are some of them in there.

N. Baum:
What's the name of the resident who's across from them? That might be similar to that name. That's my only guess.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
I don't know. The resident never identified themselves.

N. Baum:
The dumpsters are just out in the parking lot, as you know, next to the wall bar. Oh, next to the...

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
That's why I did the public hearing guideline thing, because there were, like, ten people talking at once and no one identifying themselves, so that's just kind of crazy.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, because it's next to the fence. But right now, it's just next to the fence.

N. Baum:
Oh, that might be what he was talking about, the wall. Not the wall, it's next to the fence. No, I'm just trying to think.
But there was a mini Walmart out there, right? No?

R. Gorres:
Not unless I am classified Dollar General Dominion Walmart. No, that should be changed to fence, because that's what we were talking about.

N. Baum:
Can we asterisk or footnote it? I can make a footnote.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, I think we talked about that before.
N. Baum:
And say, potentially talking about or referencing...

R. Gorres:
Undecipherable. Yeah. It should be fenced, but...

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
There was a lot of undecipherable.

R. Gorres:
Yeah.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
But it's okay.

R. Gorres:
No, it's not okay.

D. Eisenhardt:
I do not envy you doing these after having been doing them. I don't envy you doing these minutes at all. Listening to that tape and having to decipher what everybody's saying is not easy.

R. Gorres:
Janice actually stood up one day when they were going on and on and on about it, and she told everybody to shut up. I can't hear you. I can't hear what's going on here because you're all talking at the same time. If you want the record right, I need you to be quiet. Everybody was like, oh, surprised she didn't get called on the carpet for that, but she was right.

D. Eisenhardt:
All right. What do we got next? Vouchers?

R. Gorres:
Vouchers.

N. Baum:
Are we doing a MOTION?

R. Gorres:
I'll make a MOTION to approve the minutes of November 18th, 2025 with corrections. On the vote? 

All:
Aye. 

R. Gorres:
That's squared away. Now we can do some vouchers. I'm sure you're thrilled.

N. Baum:
I know I am. We have a voucher for MHE engineering for work done on United Pump and Tank Inc. In the amount of $177.50. That was MHE?

R. Gorres:
Yeah. I make a MOTION we pay MHE engineering $177.50 for work on United Tank and Pump.

E. VanDeMark:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.

N. Baum:
Voucher for MHE engineering for work done on Chaissan S.D. In the amount of $347.40. 

R. Gorres:
We make a MOTION we pay MHE engineering $347.40 for work on Lindsay Court.

E. VanDeMark:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.

N. Baum:
Okay. Voucher for MHE engineering for work done on Peak Summit Enterprise. In the amount of $347.40. However, they do not have enough to pay.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
Excuse me, I did just get Ken Lytle's $500 escrow increase check today.

N. Baum:
So we do have enough to pay.

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
So we do.

N. Baum:
After deposit. Okay.

R. Gorres:
So I retract that.

D. Eisenhardt:
$347.40. Yes.

R. Gorres:
We make a MOTION we pay MHE engineering $347.40 for working on Peak Summit Enterprise.

E. VanDeMark:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.


N. Baum:
Voucher for MHE engineering for work done on Zelenak 44 Old East Road in the amount of $289.70. Where is that?

R. Gorres:
That's the guy's name.

N. Baum:
Zelenak on 44 Old East..

R. Gorres:
Yeah, Zelenak, I make a MOTION we pay.

D. Eisenhardt:
48 Old East Road?

R. Gorres:
44.

D. Eisenhardt:
42 to 48. So that's Forest Modern?

R. Gorres:
That's a different, yeah. Forest Modern.

D. Eisenhardt:
Because that says 42 to 48 Old East Road.

R. Gorres:
It is. That's Forest Modern what he came in under. I make a MOTION we pay MHE engineering for work on Forest Modern in the amount of $289.70.

D. Eisenhardt:
Second. 

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.

N. Baum:
Voting on MHE engineering for work done on the Ridge Yard 2021 US Route 44 in the amount of $478.70.

R. Gorres:
I make a MOTION we pay MHE engineering $478.70 for work on the Ridge Yard.

D. Eisenhardt:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.

N. Baum:
Voucher for MHE engineering for work done on Rappleyea, 94 Patura Road in the amount of $208.40.

R. Gorres:
I make a MOTION we pay MHE engineering for work on Rappleyea in the amount of $208.40.

E. VanDeMark:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.

D. Eisenhardt:
They're not on the list.

R. Gorres:
Maybe they're not.

E. VanDeMark:
Yeah, it's under drive home RV, I believe.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, that's the guy Yeah, that's the guy over on Patura Road. Correct.

D. Eisenhardt:
How much was that for?

N. Baum:
$208.40.

R. Gorres:
Motion's been made and seconded. On the vote?

All:
Aye.

N. Baum:
Voucher for MHE Engineering for work done on Plattekill Public Library in the amount of $618.20.

R. Gorres:
How much?

N. Baum:
$618.20.

R. Gorres:
Make a MOTION we pay MHE Engineering for work on Plattekill Public Library in the amount of $618.20.

E. VanDeMark:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?
All:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
That's it?

N. Baum:
That is all I have.

J. LaFiandra:
That voucher for drive home RV, does that get us down around $500 in the balance?

N. Baum:
A little over, yeah.

E. VanDeMark:
He's getting pretty close to being done, I think.

R. Gorres:
Well, I don't know where he's at.

N. Baum:
He came in, he's only been in front of us twice?

R. Gorres:
Yes.

D. Eisenhardt:
Yeah, they had the public hearing.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, that might be enough for now. If we need more, the next voucher comes in if it's, we'll ask Pat if it needs to be more. At this point, I don't think, that's not a big project. I don't think it's going to require a lot more money.

D. Eisenhardt:
Last thing is reorg.

R. Gorres:
All right. We have to reappoint the attorney, the clerk, and the newspaper, and the attorney and Pat Hines, and...

D. Eisenhardt:
Do we have the list of the... No.

R. Gorres:
No, there's no... I'm very sure next year at this time, Liz will have it on the thing as a reorganization meeting, because I meant to call her and have her put it on the agenda, and I forgot. Because that's kind of my faux pas.
So, I'll make a MOTION we retain MHE engineering as our engineering firm.

D. Eisenhardt:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote? 

All:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
Now, I don't know what the attorneys, who Dominic works for.

N. Baum:
Drake and Loeb, right?

R. Gorres:
Drake and Loeb. Yeah, I'll make a MOTION we retain Drake and Loeb as attorneys for the planning board.

E. VanDeMark:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
I make a MOTION we retain Southern Ulster Times as the newspaper we put our public notices in.

D. Eisenhardt:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
Who else? Oh, I make a MOTION we reappoint Elizabeth Ackerley as... Sorry, Liz, as board clerk.

D. Eisenhardt:
Eh, we'll second it.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, we'll second it.

D. Eisenhardt:
On the vote?

All:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
Such a vote of confidence. I'm good. Okay.

D. Eisenhardt:
Are we putting Nate back on the voucher committee?

R. Gorres:
Yeah. I'll make a MOTION we retain Nathaniel Baum as the voucher committee.


D. Eisenhardt:
Second.

R. Gorres:
On the vote?

D. Eisenhardt:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
Now many of you know that I'm not running for chairman this year. I've had enough.

E. VanDeMark:
I thought you were canvassing.

R. Gorres:
No.

E. VanDeMark:
Are you sure? I prayed hard.

R. Gorres:
It didn't work. You didn't pray hard enough.

D. Eisenhardt:
Are you staying on the board?

R. Gorres:
Yeah. I got so much stuff going on in my life that I need to slow down a little bit.

D. Eisenhardt:
I'm making a MOTION that we have Ernie VanDeMark as the Chair.

R. Gorres:
I'll second that. On the vote?

All:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
I make a MOTION. I nominate Darlene Eisenhardt as Vice Chairman.

J. LaFiandra:
I'll second that.

D. Eisenhardt:
Thank you.

R. Gorres:
I was waiting. I was waiting for something. I'm sitting here like, okay, people. This is not hard. On the vote.

All:
Aye.

R. Gorres:
I think we've covered everything.

D. Eisenhardt:
We don't have a secretary this year. I was the secretary. Even though I only covered for Janice or Liz when they are out.

R. Gorres:
We have to have that filled up.

D. Eisenhardt:
Do we have to have that filled up? We do?

R. Gorres:
Yeah, you do.

D. Eisenhardt:
Want to do Joe?

J. LaFiandra:
I don't know what that involves.

R. Gorres:
Taking notes. Taking notes if she's not here and making sure the recorder is turned on.

D. Eisenhardt:
That's it.

R. Gorres:
Trust me. It's not a hard job.

D. Eisenhardt:
I've done it for the last four years.

R. Gorres:
You can do it.

D. Eisenhardt:
I'll nominate Joe LaFiandra as the secretary.

R. Gorres:
Second.

D. Eisenhardt:
On the vote?

R. Gorres:
Aye. Your terms on the county planning board are three years each. We have another year to go. I wanted to make sure that was covered.

D. Eisenhardt:
Do we have one or two? We've only been on it a year.

R. Gorres:
I thought you were only on it a year. They only approved you last year.

E. VanDeMark:
I think he said in 2026 is when I expire.

D. Eisenhardt:
Oh, really?

N. Baum:
That's an ominous thing to say. The way he said it.
R. Gorres:
You're right.

E. VanDeMark:
We don't need to make a MOTION.

R. Gorres:
No, that will be next year. The board makes its recommendations. The town board has to approve it. Then it goes to the county. The county legislature has to approve it.

E. VanDeMark:
We don't want to drag our feet on that. It takes them time.

R. Gorres:
It took them last time.

E. VanDeMark:
I will happily stay on that board. If you so desire.

N. Baum:
Closing out some of these[escrow accounts]. Acevedo's been completed, well, I think been completed for a while.

E. VanDeMark:
Yeah. That was storage, wasn't it?

N. Baum:
No, because what I want to do is close any escrows of a project. Does the board want to wait until you start working through some of the files to see if a project's completed?

E. VanDeMark:
Yeah, let's verify that all the maps and everything are intact.

R. Gorres:
Yeah. Once in a while, we need to go through all that stuff and just find out who hasn't been here a while. Because Sue used to do that. Janice used to do it. We get projects going, and they sit here for six months, and we forget about it. One of the things, if you can, go through them and see who hasn't been here in six months, because then they need to be reminded to be updated or whatever. The board has to make a MOTION to continue.

N. Baum:
Just so we can start closing out escrow and returning money.

R. Gorres:
Yeah, just clean it up.

N. Baum:
So, in February, we can readdress it after you get more acclimated?

R. Gorres:
I like that word.


E. VanDeMark:
When would these new appointments get affirmed? Would it be in the January term?

R. Gorres:
What's that? The appointments start on the 1st. The town board doesn't meet on the 1st.

R. Gorres:
It gets approved at the town's reorganization meeting on the 1st, Wednesday [January 1st is a Thursday] of January. I'll leave that on for now. Did you send that e-mail about the fire chief in Modena to everybody?

E. Ackerly (Clerk):
No.

R. Gorres:
Okay, I got a, Elizabeth's been doing a better, a great job, now. She sent me a request for information from the fire chief in Modena about the future project up on Lembo Lake, 200 acres from Keith Libolt. Wanting to know what the project was and where it's going, what it's going to look like. I gave him limited information. Frankly, we don't have an application before the board yet. He hasn't brought the plans in yet. I talked to Keith. He's working on it. He figures he'll be in in a couple of months. He wanted to know about fire protection. As far as I know, he's putting in a big water tank. He's putting hydrants around the houses. He's putting a lot of water in the houses. I don't know what more you need to know. We addressed all that when he came in to talk to us. That's what he got. I just that's the same fire department that came in and was worried about the warehouse. I'm like, I've worked in this warehouse where I am for three years now. We haven't had a fire call or ambulance call yet. I don't know where you think this is going to increase your workload. Especially if he puts a hydrant system in. How much better can you have it?

N. Baum:
I guess it's the possibility. You still have to plan for the worst.

R. Gorres:
Technically, I shouldn't have said anything to him. He gets that information when we get it. We send a set of plans.
We should send a set of plans to the school district so they know what's going on. That's a fairly large project. They might have a lot of kids.

N. Baum:
Are we expecting information anytime soon?

R. Gorres:
A couple months.

N. Baum:
Because I still don't understand the clearing of the property.

R. Gorres:
Well, Mike [Lembo, 2026 Supervisor Elect] can probably fill you in better than I. That land is still because he had Garrison Brothers come in and plant alfalfa and cut it. I guess it's still considered agricultural. When it's agricultural, you can pretty much do whatever you want with it when you're clearing it and cleaning it up and whatever you want to do. Without DEC approval, like Dave Roark did when he built that road across the swamp to go up to the piece in the back by Jussel's farm. There's limited... Farmers can do a lot of things that other people can't. He said, to do it before it becomes a project and it has to go to DEC. What he said was, and this is going to apply to everybody, we need somebody to do and it should be Pat to do training on the new guidelines for SEQRA. Because Albany I missed the thing where he did it online. Albany is a greater, what they consider wetlands now aren't really wetlands. Up where Mike had the gravel mine. That area, depending on how DEC looks at it, could be classified as wetlands.

E. VanDeMark:
Not this one. I just want to clarify that. While the recorder is still running.

D. Eisenhardt:
I make a MOTION we adjourn.

R. Gorres:
Second.

All:
Aye.

D. Eisenhardt:
You all have a very merry Christmas.
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